LINWOOD COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING January 26, 2022

CALL TO ORDER

Council President Ralph Paolone called the meeting to order at 6:22 P.M., noting that the meeting had been advertised in compliance with the requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act.

FLAG SALUTE:

Councilwoman Blair Albright led the flag salute.

ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor Darren Matik; Councilwoman Blair Albright; Councilwoman June Byrnes;

Councilwoman Stacy DeDomenicis; Councilman Eric Ford (via zoom); Councilman Matt Levinson (via zoom); Councilman Todd Michael; and Council President Ralph Paolone.

Absent: None

Also Present: Joseph L. Youngblood, Jr., City Solicitor; Jen Heller, Engineer's Office; and Leigh Ann

Napoli, Municipal Clerk.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES WITHOUT FORMAL READING

Councilwoman Byrnes motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Albright, to approve the minutes of the December 8, 2021 Regular and the January 4, 2022 Reorganization meeting without formal reading. All members of Council were in favor. Motion was approved.

ORDINANCES

1 OF 2022

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR AND ESTABLISHING SALARIES, COMPENSATION AND SALARY RANGES OF OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF LINWOOD, AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES HERETOFORE ADOPTED, THE PROVISIONS OF WHICH ARE INCONSISTENT HEREWITH.

The City Clerk read Ordinance No. 1 of 2022 by title only. Councilman Michael motioned, seconded by Councilman Levinson, to approve Ordinance No. 1 for final reading. Council President Paolone opened the floor for discussion on Ordinance No. 1. Seeing and hearing no members of the public wishing to be heard, Council President Paolone closed the floor. A roll call vote was heard with seven in the affirmative. Motion was approved.

2 OF 2022

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 263 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, ARTICLE I GENERAL REGULATIONS OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF LINWOOD AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES HERETOFORE ADOPTED, THE PROVISIONS OF WHICH ARE INCONSISTENT HEREWITH.

The City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2 of 2022 by title only. Councilwoman DeDomenicis motioned, seconded by Councilman Ford, to approve Ordinance No. 2 for first reading. A roll call vote was heard with seven in the affirmative. Motion was approved.

RESOLUTIONS

39-2022 A Resolution approving a revised Temporary Budget for 2022

The City Clerk read Resolution No. 39 of 2022 by title only. Councilwoman Albright motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Byrnes, to approve Resolution No. 39. A roll call vote was heard with seven in the affirmative. Motion was approved.

44-2022 A Resolution awarding a Non-Competitive Contract for Professional Services to AtlantiCare Behavioral Health for the Employee Assistance Program

The City Clerk read Resolution No. 44 of 2022 by title only. Councilwoman Byrnes motioned, seconded by Councilwoman DeDomenicis, to approve Resolution No. 44. A roll call vote was heard with seven in the affirmative. Motion was approved.

RESOLUTIONS WITHIN CONSENT AGENDA

All matters listed under item, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by City Council, and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed. Any items requiring expenditure are supported by a Certification of Availability of Funds and any item requiring discussion will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. All Consent Agenda items will be reflected in full in the minutes.

Consent Agenda items will be reflected in full in the influtes.	
31-2022	A Resolution to cease the operations of the Municipal Court of the City of Linwood and
	suspend its current Municipal Court arrangement
32-2022	A Resolution awarding the Contract to Miller's Lawn Care Inc. for Lawn Maintenance and
	Snow Removal Services in the City of Linwood
33-2022	A Resolution authorizing the City of Linwood to advertise for bids for Janitorial Services
	for the City of Linwood
34-2022	A Resolution awarding Non-Competitive Contracts for Professional Services to Eric S.
	Goldstein as Planning Board Solicitor and Vincent Polistina as Planning Board Engineer
35-2022	A Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Raffle License, #2022-01, to Mainland Crew
	Association
36-2022	A Resolution authorizing the refund of a Rental Registration Fee
37-2022	A Resolution authorizing the refund of a Rental Registration Fee
38-2022	A Resolution authorizing the refund of a Rental Registration Fee
40-2022	A Resolution approving Change Order No. 1-Final with Seashore Associated Mechanical,
	Inc. with regard to the 606 E. Oakcrest Seepage Pits in the City of Linwood
41-2022	A Resolution authorizing the City of Linwood Police Department to participate in the
	Defense Logistics Agency, Law Enforcement Support Office 1033 Program to enable the
	Linwood Police Department to request and acquire excess Department of Defense
	Equipment
42-2022	A Resolution approving Change Order No. 1-Final with Arawak Paving Co., Inc. with
	regard to the Frances Avenue Resurfacing Project in the City of Linwood
43-2022	A Resolution approving Change Order No. 1-Final with AE Stone Inc. with regard to the
	Wabash & Belhaven Resurfacing Project in the City of Linwood

Council President Paolone asked if any member of Council would like to remove any items from consent. Nothing was removed. Councilman Michael motioned, seconded by Councilman Ford, to approve Resolutions No. 31-38, 40-43 of 2022. All members of Council were in favor. Motion was approved.

APPROVAL OF BILL LIST: \$4,044,659.50

Councilwoman DeDomenicis motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Albright, to approve the bills for payment. A roll call vote was heard with seven in the affirmative. Motion was approved. (The bill list is attached as Exhibit A)

MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Council President Paolone opened the floor to the public for discussion on any topic.

Seeing and hearing no other members from the public wishing to be heard, Council President Paolone closed the floor.

FINAL REMARKS BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL

<u>Mayor Matik</u> – The Mayor presented his State of the City Report:

Over the past year, the residents of Linwood have worked together to contain the virus and we are ready to take on the opportunities ahead and emerge from this time of historic challenge as a healthier, greener, more equitable, and more just community. Small businesses, shops, restaurants, schools, students & educators, and municipal operations came together to help each other. Families and neighbors helped one another, and volunteers donated time to nonprofits that assist local families. The City has proven to be resilient and so has its staff as we have not missed a beat and have remained open for the public fully staffed. The City Council also has put in the work this year as we have completed many projects and are in the planning stage for many next year. First a little about City Hall:

FINAL REMARKS BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL (continued)

The Construction Office was always open and is led by Jim Galantino our Construction Official as well as Angela Marshall who serves as TACO/Zoning Officer with her assistant Donna McBride were as busy as ever and handled every transaction without missing a note. Our esteemed Fire Official Tom Flynn and his Deputy Nick LaRotonda took the department to new heights completing 716 inspections for the year and raising revenue to its highest level ever. Also, a special shout out to our Hazard Mitigation team who again successfully worked on our CRS rating as well as the overall County plan which will allow us to fix some problem areas in town with grant money.

The great news out of the Tax Assessor Diane Hesley's office is that tax appeals are down to 14 successful appeals from a high of almost 300, and real estate prices are rising. We had similar good news as our Tax Collector Silvia Washington and Assistant Michael Allenbaugh have our collection rate at 99.23 percent which in any year is exceptional. The Public Works Department led by Chip Jones and assistant Mike Ware took on some major projects this year. They worked at the Library, on the renovations to the new Makerspace/Media room, installed cameras on the bike path, installed new lighted pedestrian crossing signs at Belhaven, updated fire and security alarms at all public buildings, completed a comprehensive drainage project at the football/lacrosse field, cracked sealed City roads, and of course leaf collection and helping to beautify the City for the holidays. Chip and his crew are amazing and we thank them for the little and big things they do every day for the residents.

We our lucky to have a Fire Department to call on that will come out in any kind of weather to assist residents and even sometimes non-residents who are injured on the City's roadways. The Department is led by Captain Jay Loder and Volunteer Fire Chief Marty Walley and we thank them for their service. The Police Department had a remarkably busy year keeping the roadways safe as well as responding to residents in need. Do not be surprised to see them on their bikes on beautiful Linwood's sunny days patrolling and visiting with residents in and around the bike path. The Police Department fully took over the Code Enforcement and really have made a difference around the City. The Police have and will be instituting a Share the Path initiative to help with congestion on the City's Bike Path. This year will mark a leadership change as Chief Jason Weber a 32vr member of the Linwood Police force retired as of the end of the year and we wish him well in his retirement. Steve Cunningham will be taking over as Chief and we know he will do a great job with 16yr's of experience on the force. The City Engineer and now State Senator Vince Polistina and his staff especially the wonderful Jen Heller moved and are moving on several projects around the City for this year plus completed many last year. Highlights include the paving of Wabash from Patcong to Poplar Avenue paid for by a DOT grant, numerous drainage and parking improvements, completely refurbishing the Poplar Avenue pump station, videoing and surveying all of the sewer lines in the City which in turn prolongs the life of the sewer and helps us find problem areas before the problem happens with roots, extensive renovations at the Library which include a new room, parking lot repaving and drainage improvements, new ADA doors, new curbs and sidewalks some of which are completed and some to be completed this year. In 2022, we will be repaying Franklin Boulevard, continuing sewer improvements amongst other projects. Speaking of the Library, I would like to thank Maria Moss and Mary Ann Branciforti for their many years of service to the Linwood Library and especially this year going above and beyond to keep the Library open to the best of their ability. The shared Municipal Court had its second full year in Linwood and they had to learn a whole new way to serve the public as Courts went over to Zoom. Laura Garvey Santoro the Court Administrator and Deputy Shantal Swaby put many hours in getting us ready to have court in this new way. We thank both for their service as they will both move on to the new County Court. I worked on this endeavor personally as a member of a committee with other Mayors, Council Members, and Business Administrators from 8 other towns to further a shared service that will not only save Linwood residents significant money but taxpayers throughout Atlantic County. I would like to thank the other committee members for their service and for a tremendous time commitment. The City Clerk and Finance Offices run with upmost professionalism, and I thank CFO Anthony Strazzeri and our Deputy City Clerk and Planning Board Secretary Mary Cole for the great work they do every day. Our Auditors, Leon and Carol, make sure we are doing everything correct and usually have a perfect score every year. City Solicitor Joe Youngblood now in his 45th year is always a guiding force on our decision making. I would also like to thank all the volunteers who dedicate much time and commitment to the City. All the Planning Board members, Environmental Commission members and new Green Team, the Library Board, Economic Development Board, Senior Citizens Advisory Committee, Recreation Board, and our Arboretum Curator George Butrus and the Friends of the Linwood Arboretum. All the volunteers help make our City great. And I will say it again this year that the glue that hold everything together is our City Clerk Leigh Ann Napoli who makes everyone's life easier, and I am

FINAL REMARKS BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL (continued)

sure all the people who serve on Council or work for the city would agree that they would not want to do this job without her. This year we said goodbye to my friend and Councilman Todd Gordon and thank him for his service to the city and we welcome a new member Blair Albright to the team. In closing I would like to thank all of our Council Members, board members and volunteers who give so much time to the city. I also would like to thank my wife Brett and my two boys Zach and Xander for allowing me to do this job and serve the residents of this great City. He is proud to be the Mayor of Linwood.

<u>Councilwoman Albright</u> – Councilwoman Albright reminded everyone to be safe with the upcoming storm. She thanked Mr. Youngblood for swearing her in at the Reorganization Meeting.

<u>Councilwoman DeDomenicis</u> – Councilwoman DeDomenicis recognized the fine work of the Public Works and Police Departments with the last storm and the upcoming storm. She hopes that everyone stays safe. The ACUA is having difficulties with yard waste collection due to lack of employees. They deposited a container at the Public Works yard for residents to drop off yard waste.

<u>Councilwoman Byrnes</u> – Councilwoman Byrnes announced that the City received a Recreation Improvement Grant in the amount of \$55,000 for a new playground and outdoor story area at the Library. The playground will be designed for education, fun, and neighborhood friendly. She thanked Jen Heller, Mrs. Napoli, and Maria Moss for their help with the grant application.

<u>Councilman Michael</u> – Councilman Michael thanked the Public Works Department for all they do. He told a story of how a Share the Path sign was obstructing the view for a crossing guard. On top of all their other jobs, Public Works took care of it right away. Great job.

<u>Councilman Levinson</u> – Councilman Levinson echoed everyone's sentiments on the good job that is done by the Public Works Department.

Councilman Ford – Councilman Ford wished everyone good luck in the impending snow storm.

<u>Council President Paolone</u> – Council President Paolone reminded everyone to be patient with trash and recycling collections. The ACUA is having problems with the Pandemic just like everyone else. The City works closely with them to keep the streets clean and safe.

ADJOURNMENT

With no further business to be addressed by Council, Councilman Michael motioned, seconded by Councilwoman DeDomenicis, to adjourn at 6:42 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Leigh Ann Napoli, RMC Municipal Clerk